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. small stairs with simple ramped and eased railings lead to a jury room

spericd mantels.survive,

Brunswick County courthouse, the fourth court building to be erected in
the county since its establishment and the second in Lawrenceville, is the
central building in a group of public structures which includes a clerk's
office, library and jail. With the Confederate war monument, they
constitute a classic Southern courthouse square.

The Greek Revival courthouse was built in 1854-55 by Edward Randolph
Turnbull and Robert Kirkland at a cost of $7000. As originally con-
structed, it was a two-~story, gable-roofed rectangular building, 50 by
55 feet, built of brick laid in five-course American bond. In 1939, a
brick addition was made to the rear, creating a T-shaped plan.

The gable-end entrance of the courthouse is shelfered by a pedimmented
portico with four colossal Greek Doric columns. A plain frieze is
carried around the original portion of the building, and atop the pediment
is a small, square hipped-roof cupola with rectangular louvered openings,|
a bracketed cornice and a weathervane. The main entrance is double-
doored with large rectangular transom and side lights. All of the windowsg
in the building have plain white marble lintels and six-over-six sash.

The first-floor plan consists of a two-~story entrance hall off which a
number of offices open. Simple, straight run stairs with square newels
and balusters on either side of the hall lead to a common landing at the
'lentrance to the courtroom. This is'a’'very plain room, from which

and judge's chambers, All of the original fireplaces with their plain

Next.to the courthouse stands the County Clerk's Office, built by J.
Dimmock of Richmond in 1893 when the Brunswick records outgrew their
quarters in the courthouse building. It, too, is a two-story brick
building, laid in six-course American bond. The double front door, with
its transom light and rusticated stone lintels, is flanked by pairs of
barred transom windows with rusticated stone lintels. A siring course,
consisting (from top to bottom) of a projecting stretcher course, a flush
stretcher course, a hound's tooth soldier course, and three projecting
stretcher courses, encircles the building at second~-floor level, The
three bays in the second story are defined by pairs of barred windows
with semicircular trmisoms and brick arches. A molded cornice is
carried around the building except in the center of the front where a
parapeted cross-gable with stone coping and a circular louvre break it.
The end walls are blank, and additions were made to the rear in 1924 and

1839, A hipped roof and interior end chimneys crown the clerk's office.
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STATEMENT OF SIGMIFICANCE .

With its powerful Greek Doric courthouse and its Confederate monument,
the courthouse square in Lawrenceville is the epitome of the nineteenth-
century Virginia shire town. The small group of public buildings forms
a harmonious ensemble which acts as a focal point for the life of the
village. Through fortunate ties of Masonic fraternity between E. R.
Turnbull, the county clerk and builder of the courthouse, and a Union
raider, the Brunswick records were spared the destruction which befell
so many governmental records during the Civil War.

Brunswick County, named for the Duchy of Brunswick, home of the
English royal House of Hanover, was established by an act of the General
Assembly in 1720, although its bounds were not drawn until 1723, The
county had been set up as a buffer against anticipated French and Indian
attacks, but actually had few-settlers until afterthe famoiis: survey' of the
-7.d1v1d1ng line between Virginia and North Carolina, .described by William
Byrd II in 1728. No courthouse was needed, then, until 1782, when the
first one was built, Brunswick County at this period was 230.miles. long,
and the courthouse was moved in 1744 and again in 1783 to compensate
for the periodic setting off of large areas as new counties. In 1814,
Lawrenceville was established around the courthouse, by legislative act,
to be the county seat. By 1853, a new courthouse was needed, and a
committee was appointed to inspect and presumably to copy the 1842
Mecklenburg County Courthouse at Boydton. A contract was let to E. R.
Turnbull and Robert Kirkland, who built a courthouse for $7000 which,
however, bore little resemblance to the Boydton building. In 1893
Separate facilities were provided for the clerk's office.
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